CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Haweee present. Mr. Greenman was absent.

Michelle Rentzsch, Director of Planning and EcoroDeévelopment, Latika Bhide and Elizabeth
Maxwell, both Planners, Rick Paulson, Building Coissioner, were present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise tohgai?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attendan
in the Pledge.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting was being tedenow as well as recorded for future playback on
the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 4, 2013 PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Jouron moved to approve the minutes from th&&weber 4, 2013 Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Goss secdhdadotion. On roll call, members Batastini,
Gavle, Goss, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden voted ly. Esposito abstained. Motion passed.

Mr. Hayden suggested that the order of the ageaddnéanged. They will hear Agenda items 3, 4, 8, an
6 before item #2. There was no objection fromrtienbers or petitioners.

2013-38 PORZEZINSKI — 186 Regal Dr— PUBLIC HEARING
This petition was continued from the Septembel04,32PZC meeting.
Variation to allow a deck and gazebo to encroacfe&0into the required 20-foot rear yard setback

Ms. Maxwell said the petitioner was not present.. Gloss suggested that they move to the next item
and come back to this when the petitioner arrivBse members agreed.

2013-43 OLSON — 1335 Knollwood Circle- PUBLIC HEARING
Variation to allow a 6-foot tall fence in a yardugiting a street (10 feet from the property linenglo
Amberwood Dr.) instead of the maximum permittecghéenf 3 feet.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Adam Olson was present to represent his petitddn.Olson said they recently moved into the home



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 2

and removed a rotted cedar fence. They wouldttksut up a new fence and are requesting a vamiatio
to allow them to put the fence in the building setband square off the back yard. Without the
variation the fenced back yard would be shallow agdow.

Mr. Hayden asked if the petitioner had any conceritis the recommended conditions in the staff
report. Mr. Olson said no.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss said he doesn’t have a problem with corunglO feet from the house and then parallel ¢o th
sidewalk to the rear of the property. He woule lik see the fence landscaped to help block tlezfen
from the street. Mr. Goss agreed that the shapieedbt is the hardship.

Mr. Gavle said a 6 foot fence is a problem. He saost of the fences in the neighborhood are chain
link or open wood. Mr. Olson said there are ntsioe issues with the proposed location of thecée
He said the lot directly across the street hanad the mirror image of what he is requesting. Mr
Gavle said he is concerned with the fence.

Mr. Esposito said he lives in the area and thartkegetitioner for fixing up the house. He saidréh
are a lot of fences in the area and he has nogmoblith this request.

Mr. Skluzacek said he asked why a 6 foot fence. @gon said it's a privacy issue. They have gdar
sliding glass door that looks into their kitchefhey also have two very large dogs.

Mr. Batastini asked why the petitioner asked fer fince at the angle he has on the site plan.OMon
said he wanted to avoid a large pine tree. Herdbesnt to take it down. Mr. Batastini said thagn’t
usually recommend approval for tall fences on colois. Ms. Bhide said the 10 feet is the clopesht
of the fence is on the west property line. Shd ## angle can be adjusted. Mr. Goss said hentloes
want it any closer than that.

Ms. Bhide brought up an aerial view of the sitengghe City’s GIS map. She measured from the lot
line to the tree and it is approximately 19 fe€he aerial photo also showed the location of tnede
that was removed by the petitioner.

Mr. Hayden said there are no sight line issues thighlocation of the fence.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Simplified Resitial Variation from Section 4-700B3 to allow a 6-
foot tall fence in a yard abutting a street ibroximately 17 feet from the property lindepending on
the location of the treealong Amberwood Dr.) instead of the maximum permitheight of 3 feet at
1335 Knollwood Circle with the following conditions




PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 3

1. Approved plans, to reflect staff and advisorgioiocomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Development Application, received 8-28-13
B. Plat of Survey/Site Plan, Bergquist, receive2iB813

2. A building permit is required prior to the ingiéion of a fence.

3. The existing grading and drainage patterns dammaltered.

4. The petitioner shall address all comments otahgineering and Building, Public Works, Fire
Rescue, Police and Planning & Economic Developrdempartments.

5. Landscaping shall be added along the street sidé the fence to soften the look of the fence.
The landscaping shall be complete by June 1, 2014.

Mr. Goss seconded the motion. On roll call, alhmbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2013-38 PORZEZINSKI — 186 Regal Dr— PUBLIC HEARING
This petition was continued from the Septembel04,32PZC meeting.
Variation to allow a deck and gazebo to encroacfe&0into the required 20-foot rear yard setback

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Daniel Porzezinski was present to represent hiigret Mr. Porzezinski said he recently purchatez
home and they received approval from the HomeowAesociation for the deck and gazebo. He said
they received a permit for a deck and when he dartiee City to change his permit, that is when he
found it was illegal and could not finish the dekkt was started. He said the house is pusheddrack
the lot and there are many easements that helmatdtin. Also the lot slopes considerably. Mr.
Porzezinski said he was not aware that he coulguiod roof structure over the deck and it muss be

feet from the home. Half of the deck is completétt. Porzezinski showed photos to the
Commissioners of his property and deck. When liehased the home he was not aware of the building
setback line on the lot. He wants to be able itWlaudecent size deck. The patio that is themnlg 8

feet wide and is cracking. He said there isn’'t mti@at can be done with his back yard.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Ms. Maxwell explained that they can have a covethendeck but it must be within the house setback
while an open deck can encroach up to 4 feet.

Mr. Batastini said he can appreciate the slopd®biack yard. He said the City approved the Iots a



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 4

this is a good size house on the lot which doegmé homeowners much room for anything like decks,
sheds, etc. He believes this is a hardship. ldedthat the lot to the rear is vacant at this tirvik.
Batastini said he supports this request.

Mr. Jouron said he understands the problem buinserned with precedent. Mr. Batastini said there
was a variation for a deck already approved in shédivision. He said they need to look at Couscil
history. There are many similar lots in that swision.

Mr. Porzezinski said he was probably told at tlosiclg about the easements but there is so muclg goin
on then that he didn’t remember it. He did com@imanother permit and was told it was not allowed
the way he wanted to build the deck and gazeba.Pirzezinski said he is trying to be courteouhéo
neighbors and wants to finish this project. Hel saith the easements on his lot, there is no ramm t
build anything.

Mr. Skluzacek asked how far away from the houséthd hot tub be. Mr. Porzezinski said about 7.fee
Mr. Skluzacek said the hot tub should not be tosecto the house. He asked about the conditions i
the staff report. Mr. Porzezinski said he wanesdbrrent deck with a railing. Mr. Skluzacek sagd
wants the petitioner to be aware of the conditiortbe report.

Mr. Gavle asked if there were any discussions aii#ff about the proposed project. Mr. Paulson said
the petitioner had submitted plans for a standelbeck with a hot tub. That is not a problem. réhe
was no reason to bring up the setback line urgy tame in with the change to the original perrt.
Gavle said if staff doesn’'t know what people wantlo, staff can’t give complete information. Mr.
Porzezinski said he didn’'t know what he wanted mwadle changes as he went along. He added that he
had a time restriction to build the deck and thgioal permit plan was modified later to attach tieek

to the house. He had people helping him thatratled trades and they didn’t know. Mr. Gavle d&d
can’t support the request.

Mr. Porzezinski said the deck was built over a veeekand Staff was nice to allow me to video tagk an
take photos of the work. When the inspector cautel@at Monday was when the issue came up.

Mr. Goss asked what the Homeowners’ Associatiomagal. Mr. Porzezinski said they approved the
project as presented. Mr. Goss said this lot tsleep enough. What upsets him is the Homeowners’
Association approves things without knowing theeco@hey should say to see the City first to be sur
the project can be done and then come back tosgwimtion for their ok. It's unfortunate.

Mr. Hayden feels the same way. When a developmesdefore them for a recommendation, they are
always telling the developer about possible fuprablems with homeowners wanting what others have
such as decks, pools, sheds, etc. The developetresy are going to tell the potential homeowner
about it. Mr. Hayden said he can't support thipuest either.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve a Variation fromiglg 3-200A and 3-200 C2r to allow a deck and



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 5

gazebo to encroach 10 feet into the required 20+t yard setback at 186 Regal Drive with the
following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Porzezinski, received 08/09/13)

B. Plat of Survey (Manhard Consulting Ltd., dat&0®&/10, received 08/09/13)

C. Deck Plans (Menards Design It, 08/05/13 and 0&®) received 08/09/13)

2. No walls shall be constructed around the dedkosimg it further similar to a screen porch or 3-
season room.

3. The petitioner shall address all of the revi@mmments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building and Planning and Economic Development Diepants.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll caknmbers Batastini, Jouron, and Skluzacek voted aye.
Members Esposito, Gavle, and Hayden voted no.Qdss voted present. Motion did not pass 3-3-1.

Mr. Batastini said he doesn’t disagree with theevatle said people don’t think of all the futurasp
challenges when they are purchasing a home, edipegithis subdivision.

2013-42 CL PARK DIST — VET ACRES — 431 N. Walkup- PUBLIC HEARING
Variation to allow a climbing structure to excebed tL5-foot requirement to allow up to 43 feet.

Ms. Maxwell said the petitioner is requesting tocbatinued to the next PZC meeting. They hopetl tha
the soils report would have been received prigdhéomeeting but they have not received it yet.

Mr. Batastini moved to continue 2013-42 Crystal & &fark District — Veterans Acres to the October 2,
2013 PZC meeting. Mr. Jouron seconded the moti@m.voice vote, all members voted aye. Motion
passed.

2013-46 CRYSTAL COURT — S. Rt. 14; E. Main St— PUBLIC HEARING
Final PUD Amendmertb allow changes to the free-standing sign.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Mitch Davidhizar was present to represent the ipetit Mr. Davidhizar said there is currently a free
standing pylon sign with three panels for busingsdde said there is a decorative panel curremtlighe
sign and they would like to remove that panel tovalanother business to use that sign. They believ
having an additional panel will help lease the proyp Mr. Davidhizar said there are four property



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 6

owners within the shopping center and that wilballeach owner to have a portion of the sign.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss asked what will be done when the formeWda and Cub Foods sites redevelop. Mr.
Davidhizar said those buildings have the two lasgats on the top of the sign. He said curretigyai
temporary agreement. Mr. Goss said he won'’t vat@hother sign. Mr. Gavle agreed.

Mr. Skluzacek said there is no change to the dizleeosign. Mr. Davidhizar said no — only replacang
panel.

Mr. Jouron said he likes the sign and changingldeorative panel for a business it not a probléfa.
suggested that to get more tenants space on thetlsgy could divide the small panels in half. Mr.
Davidhizar said that is a great idea. They coelepkthe two larger areas and split the remaining.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Final PUD Ameedtto allow changes to the free-standing sign
for Crystal Court Shopping Center located soutRaofite 14/Northwest Highway and east of Liberty
Road with the following conditions:

1. Approved plan, to reflect staff and advisorydgoeomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application (Crystal Lake Shopping Center L.iegeived 08/30/13)
B. Sign pictures (Crystal Lake Shopping Center Lréteived 08/30/13)

2. Modifications to the free-standing sign whicteathe design, size or character of the sign $eall
required to seek a PUD Amendment; this does naidedhe changing of tenant panels for new tenants.

Mr. Goss seconded the motion. On roll call, alhmbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2013-34 SIGNATURE AUTO — 970 Pyott Road- PUBLIC HEARING

This petition was referred back from the City Caband was continued from the September 4, 2013

PZC meeting.

Special Use Permit and Use Variation AmendmenafoAutomobile Dealer and Other Motor Vehicles
Dealer in the M-Manufacturing District.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection. Mr. Gottemoller said tign was posted and staff has received the affidav
and the publication certificate.

Joe Gottemoller, attorney, and Brent Penningtomesywere present to represent the petition. Mr.
Hayden stated that just prior to the start of tleetimg he received documents from 8 residents who



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 7

were not able to attend the meeting stating th@mion of what they would like to see along the
property line.

Mr. Gottemoller said this business has been befwa€ity a few times. The original request was
recommended for approval by the PZC and ultimaplyroved by City Council. The second request
was recommended for denial by the PZC and senttoatie PZC from City Council. The request has
been changed. They are now requesting for thet€jlow them to sell “other motor vehicles” and
store then on the property. They are currentlyeth@reviously, the property had a heavy car repai
shop. The originally approved use was for thetipeker to work on the cars they would be selling bu
there were inquiries on repairing other vehicl&sey would like to be able to work on other velsale
that shop.

Mr. Gottemoller reviewed the changes to the lanpisqgdan which includes the addition of arborvitae
plants along the west property line and on themprbperty line. He said the uses to both thersant
north of this parcel are manufacturing with thegandy to the south — JA Freight — being in Lakéhie
Hills. The plan also shows two cement pads outamt for show vehicles.

Mr. Gottemoller said having trucks in a manufactgrzone should not be a surprise and the trucka at
Freight come closer to the residential area thamptbposed truck on this site. The stored truaksoe
between 250 to 300 feet from the residential avehe west. He said this use is mild comparedhatw
could be there. Mr. Gottemoller said the propdaedscaping on the west property line would be abou
20 feet off of the line, depending on the utilitieghat area and they will be able to get a lavawer
behind the landscaping.

Mr. Gottemoller said this is a relatively light usee said it won’t be detrimental to property \edwand
the property was vacant for 3 years. He addedlieatariations were previously granted. Theyagre
with not having parking along the drive aisle. fhwill not be any impact on public utilities sinites
property is on well and septic. Mr. Gottemolleatstl that the trees in front of the building wdhrain,
unless of course they are ash trees that can@\ves He said it is unusual for a business ofttige to
have the building in the front with the storagevehicles in the rear. He added that they are ok thie
conditions listed in the memo dated September Q832

Inga Neuner, 947 Cardiff Dr., said that the bussrness been a good neighbor for the most part. eTher
was a meeting of the neighbors and they woulddikerm like the berm for JA Freight. She said they
can hear the truck noise but can’t see them beadube berm. Ms. Neuner added that with regular
landscaping that won'’t be tall enough to blockgtght of the larger trucks.

There was no one else in the public who wisheatoroent on this petition. The public portion was
closed at this time.

Mr. Batastini said that was a good presentatiorereng the changes. He asked about the displasare
in front of the building. Mr. Gottemoller said tieewill be two pads and the trees will not be reethv



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 8

Mr. Batastini said they need to be careful wheeepghds are placed. Mr. Gottemoller said the pegls a
only 10 feet wide. Mr. Goss said the lot is vengevand the trees can be avoided. Mr. Batastkeds
about the cruise nights. Mr. Gottemoller said tret been removed. Ms. Maxwell said the memo
reflects the changes and new requests.

Mr. Batastini said he is sensitive to the homeownéth the larger trucks being parked on the laé
would prefer a berm similar to the one on JA Frégyproperty. He understands that they are oniygus
a portion of the rear property for outdoor disgbay he is certain that in the future they will wamt
expand. It is easier to put the berm in now thdohta it later.

Mr. Hayden stated that every objection he recefvaah the property owners who were not able to
attend states that they would prefer a berm. ©ha Ktates: Fam not in agreement with the current
plan and would like the City of Crystal Lake to yéine landscape plan in its current form, | woulal

the City of Crystal Lake to enforce a landscapitapghat would include a berm and pine trees that
range from 6 to 8 feet tall. |1 would also requiktt prior to the installation of a berm that an
engineer’s report is completed in order to ensina inone of the homes surrounding the new berm will
be affected negatively by its installatibriMr. Batastini said he would like the berm torror JA

Freight.

Mr. Jouron asked if the display pads are for lighnts. Mr. Gottemoller said they would like to dasp
anything that can be sold on that property. Murdo asked if the vehicles in the lot are more
organized. Mr. Pennington said they will be movihipgs around to be more organized.

Mr. Skluzacek said he would prefer smaller vehithas big box trucks be displayed in front - polssib
pickups or smaller trucks. He also agrees withotren along the west property line.

Mr. Esposito said a berm can be a nuisance bhisrcase it is a necessity. He would like it tall
block the larger trucks.

Mr. Gavle agreed with the berm being helpful fa tteighbors. He said the parking area seems to
eliminate trees. Mr. Gottemoller said they plasave the trees but if they are ash trees, theynoilge
able to be saved.

Mr. Goss asked if the display pads be concretspinat. Mr. Gottemoller said asphalt. Mr. Gosd sa
he would prefer concrete. He asked if the pet#romill own the repair shop. Mr. Pennington séidtt
has not been determined. Mr. Goss said he wosdllikle the customer parking area to be striped. H
also asked if there is anything that they won’k sBr. Pennington said they are currently not piag

to sell semi-trucks or RVs. Mr. Goss said thetmeter should work with staff on the number of
vehicles that can be parked on the property. Hisiéwill be less than what is currently on-sitde
asked if the triple basin has been approved bZthenty Health Department. Mr. Pennington said that
it was approved before the second request. Mrs@sked if there would be a lift for vehicles. Mr.
Pennington said yes. Mr. Paulson said if it igglde, they need information on the lift and iisibuilt-



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 9

in, they need the plans. Mr. Goss asked if thelldoe any signage for the repair business. Mr.
Pennington said yes and he wants to ask for that Mr. Gottemoller stated that they will divide up
the current sign.

Mr. Hayden said all of the neighbors they receifestiback from want a berm. Mr. Gottemoller said
they are concerned with the water drainage todbhilential area. He is also concerned with thghtei
of the berm. It was easy for JA Freight to puthie berm. As they were excavating for the parking
in the rear, they just needed to pile it therebedm would not be economical for a new businegsito
in. Having dirt trucked in is expensive. Mr. Gattoller said there is a 300 foot setback from the
residential area to the storage area. There ihiamelse in the City where there was a requireshbe

Mr. Hayden asked about possible engineering coscdvtr. Paulson said a storm water permit would
be required and the City’s consultant would haveeteew it. Mr. Hayden said fundamentally the berm
is a money issue. Mr. Gottemoller said yes ancktieeno place within the City limits where a benas
required. Ms. Rentzsch stated that there waseuméred for the building along Erick Street thaths

up to residential. That berm is 5 feet tall witfeét tall landscape on it.

Mr. Batastini said with the larger trucks in tharef the property a 6 to 8 foot arborvitae on ¢jedund
will not cut it.

Mr. Hayden said they also need to think about whththappen down the road. The original request
that was approved was for high end cars and rep#nose cars prior to sale. Now the use has nealph
into large trucks, ambulances, etc. and repainmygvehicles. Mr. Gottemoller said this is not
encroaching into the setback. Mr. Goss said whare@try was built in the late 1960s early 1970s,
feathering of lot size was not thought of. Mr. @atoller said a 15 foot tall berm is too big. Mhoss
agreed and said possibly a 6 or 7 foot berm witiddaaping on top might be enough. Mr. Batastii sa
if JA Freight purchases the property in the futinan a 6 or 7 foot berm won’t be enough. Mr. Goss
said that would be a change in use and would regupublic hearing and Council approval. Mr.
Gottemoller said he is not sure that he can agréeetberm. Mr. Hayden said that is a deal breaker
Every neighbor is requesting a berm with an engir@gew and no flooding issues. He added that a
condition could be added that the petitioner woith\&taff regarding the size of the berm. Mr.
Gottemoller said that is not practical to put ibexm the size of JA Freight. There will be engrimee
permits, possibly drywells, etc. The ordinanceurexg a fence and the property line in questid@03
feet. He said a berm is not required by ordindaceither the storage use or car repair. Mr. Hayd
asked what triggers a storm water review. Mr. S@ukaid 5,000 square feet of soil disturbance. Mr
Goss said they can recommend it to Council andhikynake the final decision.

Mr. Jouron asked if the parking plan is for thetooger parking area only or for the entire site.. Ms
Maxwell said the display area is not required tstogped. They are asking for a plan of the cugtom
parking area.

Henry Aul, 955 Cardiff, said he lived in this howsken JA Freight was built and they did truck irt di



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 10

for the berm. It is at least 8 feet tall and thame regular trees as well as pine trees on tha fwar
better coverage.

Mr. Gottemoller said they have no objection to rmegwith the neighbors about what can be done. It
makes sense to talk to the neighbors.

Mr. Goss moved to approve a Special Use PermitmsdVariation Amendment for an “Automobile
Dealer” and “Other Motor Vehicle Dealer” includi2g- 10 feet by 20 feet concrete pads along Pyott
Road on either side of and behind the free-stansiogng for vehicle display in the M Manufacturing
zoning district for Signature Auto Group at 970 ®yoad with the following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Signature Auto Group, Inc., recaiv@6/24/13)

B. Landscape Plan (Choice City Gardeners, dategD0B3, received 09/09/13)

C. Property Owner Acknowledgments

2. Ordinance No. 6928, including all approval coiedis as applicable, remains valid.

3. No vehicles shall be parked in the drive-aidhicivis the driveway area extending 25 feet beybad
end of the building as illustrated on Exhibit Zaatted to this memo.

4. Staggered evergreens 6-8 feet in height atrtteedf planting shall be planted adjacent to themo
property line for 250 feet to screen the vehictesifthe property to the north—AlHandsecape-seneg
areas—ecluding-the-area—adjacentto-the residemee3 he landscape screening alonthe north
property line shall be planted by November 1, 2848 the berm along the west property line shall
be completed by June 1, 2014See Exhibit 2 for landscape screening locations.

5. Landscape screening is required adjacent tcastpmer parking areas, this includes end landscape
islands, screening adjacent to roadways or otlugrgsties, islands every 10 spaces, etc. per Settion
400 of the UDO. Landscape screening shall be atbdine east of the customer parking area where the
grass area exists now.

6. Any tree removal is subject to the City's Treedervation Ordinance Article 4-300.

7. Signage:
A. The free-standing sign shall not exceed 8 fe¢igight and 80 square feet in size.
B. The free-standing sign is required to have lasgioot of landscape materials around the base
of the sign for each square foot of signage. @hedcape materials shall consist of at least 50%
large shrubs and trees.
C. The wall signage shall not exceed 75 squarepfeetenant space and shall not exceed 50
square feet per building facade or 50 square feingividual sign.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 11

8. The required customer parking shall be providerbvide a customer parking plan for staff review
and approvalDetermine the maximum number of vehicles that wilbe allowed to be displayed in
the rear parking area.

9. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building and Planning and Economic Development Diepants.

10. The required berm along the west property lineshall be 6 feet tall with 6 to 8 foot
vegetation on top of it. The petitioner shall workwith the neighbors on the berm.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll callnadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.

Mr. Batastini said he would have voted no if thenb&vas not part of the conditions of approval. Mr.
Hayden said to work with the neighbors on the plan.

Mr. Hayden called for a 5-minute recess. The megatsumed.

2013-44 TEXAS ROAD HOUSE — 835 COG Circle- PUBLIC HEARING
Final PUD Amendment to allow changes to the extezievations and additional wall signage

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Emily Bernahl with GreenbergFarrow was presenefwesent the petition. Ms. Bernahl said they are
requesting to modify the original approval for TeXRoadhouse to allow & 3ower element on the
building and an additional wall sign. She showéthtwas originally approved and the revised plan.
The proposal is to reduce the size of one of thets and add a second tower of the same size. The
changes are on the east elevation of the buildimgwis where the entrance is located. Ms. Bernahl
showed the proposed elevation with the new sign.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss said most of his issues are with the gjgndt is an increase of 66%. He said if the tolofal
wall sign is approved then the sign over the dsarat necessary. Also there will be over 450 LED
lighting on the building which he would like to sesnoved. Ms. Bernahl said the LED lighting isithe
standard and they will probably have a problem wltminating it. Mr. Goss said 500 feet of liglgirs
a lot and we don’t typically allow that type of tigng.

Mr. Esposito said he originally voted no becausthefamount of signage. You typically see thietgp



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 12

signage along an interstate and this is not amsitatie. He said he will still vote no.

Mr. Batastini said Portillos can’'t be seen from tbhadway but they are always crowded. He said the
signs are designed for the interstate especialylaigs. Ms. Bernahl said they typically turn thfé
signs about one hour after the restaurant is closed

Mr. Jouron said he doesn't like the LED lightinijyou build it they will come. You won’t need tha
amount of lighting.

Mr. Gavle said the increase in signage is signiticdHe asked if there is any place where signagélc

be removed. Ms. Bernahl said for the original appt they added elements to the north elevatiathso
wall won'’t look so blank. Any elimination of signgould need to be discussed with Texas Roadhouse.
Mr. Gavle said they could be removed or reduddd. Bernahl said possibly the sign over the front
door could be removed but there needs to be songetim the wall. Mr. Goss asked about reducing the
size of the signs. Ms. Bernahl said the signgasportionate to the wall size.

Mr. Jouron said the sign ordinance needs to be Mietre is too much signage. Mr. Batastini sugggest
shrinking the signs but he is not sure it will hetdpm. Mr. Jouron said that is why we have a sign
ordinance.

Mr. Esposito said other out lot buildings have sign the rear elevations but they are a lot smaNét
Batastini said this is a PUD, but we do have teamething about the signs. Ms. Maxwell reviewed
several sign variations. Mr. Goss said those sitexet farther from the road that this building. . Mr
Batastini said many buildings are signs.

Mr. Hayden reviewed the amount of increase theipeér is requesting for the various signs and LED.
Mr. Goss said he doesn't care for the LED. Hesfé@atheapens the building. Mr. Batastini saidsize
of the signs are huge but the building is also &atal get to. If the size of the signs were redyudeey
would look stupid on the building and is that wiat want to accomplish. He added that there is no
monument sign for this building.

Mr. Batastini said the LED lighting was originatipproved. Mr. Goss said that is true, but withbat
additional signage. Mr. Batastini said the LEDad that offensive. Mr. Goss recalls many years ag
when Venture come to the City and wanted to putlbéand white stripes over the entire front of the
building. We did not allow it and it was the highgrossing store in their chain.

Ms. Bernahl said Texas Roadhouse chose Crystal L8REs is their new prototype and the CEO is very
involved with this site.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Final PUD Ameedtto allow changes to the exterior elevations
and additional wall signage for Texas Roadhous3atCOG Circle with the following conditions:



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 13

1. Approved plan, to reflect staff and advisorytoeomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application (Texas Roadhouse, received 08/30/13)
B. Signage (Federal Heath Sign Co., dated 03/05&l/5ed 08/28/13, received 08/30/13)
C. Elevations (GreenbergFarrow, dated 08/05/1&jived 08/30/13)

2. Conditions from Ordinance No. 6870 shall remaihd, as applicable.
3. The petitioner shall address all the Departmeevsew comments.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll cabnmbers Batastini, Gavle, Skluzacek, and Hayden
voted aye. Members Esposito, Goss, and Jourom viate Motion passed 4-3.

Mr. Esposito said there is too much signage. Murdn said if the signs were smaller in size heldou
have voted yes. Mr. Hayden likes the entire pagkdgis unique and the building is balanced.

2013-15 UDO Amendments- PUBLIC HEARING
This petition was tabled at the August 7, 2013 PZ&eting.
Text Amendment to various provisions of the Unifi@evelopment Ordinance

Mr. Hayden stated this petition was tabled fromAlgust 7, 2013 PZC meeting.

Ms. Bhide said the lake lot discussion was on tberCil agenda the previous evening. There is aflot
building activity on the lake and Council has ask@dmore input and public comment. She showed a
Power Point presentation that was given at the Giboreeting and said there were four items thatewer
looked at: fences on the street side; fences olakigeside; accessory structures; and buildinghteig

Ms. Bhide said the fences on the street side anetmes 6 feet tall and solid screen. The
recommendation is to allow all fence types up e tall and open such as picket fences, chakq lin
etc. on the street side up to 4 feet tall. MsdBtsaid staff didn’t see a pattern for the fenéesgthe
lake side. Some of the fences are 3 to 4 feeatallchain link or the open slat type. As for asoey
structures, there are gazebos, seating areasnsdrperches, and sheds. The recommendation is for
new boat houses, sheds, or other structures aneeddo have a Special Use Permit. As for buddin
height, the height per ordinance is to be measore the lake-side of the property not the stred sis

it is for other residential areas within the City.

Ms. Bhide said the Council directed staff to infaitme PZC of this information, to gather additional
information, and hold a public hearing on the nratfehis presentation is just to get this underway.

Michelle and Matt DellaMaria, 602 Edgebrook, weregent. Ms. DellaMaria read a prepared
statement. They purchased 2 lots on the lake asidmed a home using the current setbacks. They
learned on Friday that this presentation was gtorige given to the City Council at yesterday’s nmegt
and was not informed of this. Ms. Della Maria saiseems that all aspects of building on the kale



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 14

open for discussion which will impact their new hmnShe added that there are many homes on the lake
that have walk-out basements. These are not enesich story by real estate appraisers. Ms.

DellaMaria showed a Power Point presentation. fE€hees along the lake are different in the differen
neighborhoods of the lake. North Shore is a WadjJavzages and fences. She said some of the ddtache
garages remain and an attached garage is addeel podperty.

Ms. DellaMaria said they are looking for flexibyliftor homes on the lake. This should reduce tleglne
for variations. Mr. DellaMaria said most of théd@re narrow. People design the house they waht a
then as for variations. Ms. Bhide said the Cityi@@l adopted changes to the ordinance in 2005 and
currently any structure on the street side of a latoperty requires City Council approval.

Ms. DellaMaria said she is hearing about more Atrohs and restrictions for accessory structudse
feels more flexibility is needed.

Ms. DellaMaria said the building height should beasured from the street side of the property and no
determined by the lake’s natural contours. Mr.|[&Mhbria said this is a very diverse area and
consistency is needed. He said the homes in Lak@won’t seem more restrictive. Current homes are
being expanded into a second lot.

Ms. DellaMaria said this is a big topic and it itltem personally.

Mr. Hayden asked staff what is the Council’'s charlyks. Rentzsch said this started with the two
neighbors who requested fences as well as theademnquiries staff has received about building hésg
Mr. Hayden said he agrees that one of the chafrakefront property is the diversity of housingth.
He suggested that the properties adjacent talteede a PUD. Ms. Rentzsch said one possibilify is

have a separate district for lakefront properties.

Mr. Esposito said the street side is currently mered the back yard. They need to come to some so
of agreement. He thinks the street should berti f/ard just like everywhere else in the CityouY
enter a home from the front and that is the ssilet. The rear yards along the lake should be
considered differently. Mr. Batastini said thefeliénces need to be acknowledged.

Mr. DellaMaria said what is proposed concerns th@iney are concerned with the direction things are
moving in. Ms. DellaMaria said this opens a cawofms. They are currently working with the UDO
and if the requirements become more restrictivis,ltitation becomes less desirable. Mr. Haydes sai
he would be surprised if the City Council openghgentire lake property issue. They have been
through that before. Mr. DellaMaria said the dii@t was that only a few things will be discussed a
they are concerned with what is being suggested.Blstastini said there needs to be some regukation
Ms. DellaMaria said people don'’t talk with neighbdrecause they requested a variation.

Mr. Hayden said the north shore area was in thenGowith failing well and septic systems. The City
annexed the property, helped the homeowners regeavess to help with the cost of bringing in the



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 18, 2013
PAGE 15

water and sewer. Now that they are in the Cityytheed to conform and that is tough. Mr. Batastin
said it doesn’t matter if the property is on thieelar not, they hear the same thing from people
requesting variations.

Ms. DellaMaria again stated that she is concernédtive direction to more restrictions for lake
properties. The home they want to build is theesasione that was built down the street and now it
can’'t be built. Ms. Bhide said she worked on thteahalysis for the lot and she also met with the
DellaMaria’s in July about the house. The UDO updaas in the process prior to the DellaMaria’s
home being reviewed. The possible changes werbeauatuse of their request. As the UDO stands
currently, the home they are requesting is not gexchand needs a height variation.

Mr. Goss said a lakefront district is essentiahviis own requirements. People do change thedigga
and neighbors have water problems. He also balithat picket fences are not transparent enough for
that area. Mr. Goss added that restrictions apsrtant to keep the ambiance of the lake.

Ms. DellaMaria asked what the next steps are amdvimould they get the information since they seem
to find out about it after the fact. Ms. Bhidedsthe last City Council meeting was for informatamly
and for them to determine what direction they wartake. It was determined that there will be publ
hearings and possibly surveys sent to the variouselowners for their feedback. She said the property
owners will be notified of any upcoming meetinddr. DellaMaria said their request that was recently
before the PZC was held off of the City Councilredge They are already seeing delays and what is
going to happen.

Mr. Hayden gave the DellaMarias options but itisit call. They could be gambling that they magde
variations, etc. This is not known at this tintée can only tell them what is in the UDO currently.

REPORT FROM PLANNING
Ms. Rentzsch reviewed the petitions for the next PZeeting.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
There were no comments from the Commissioners.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 p.m.



